
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


April 25, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on April 25, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the
Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Randy Ognio


Commissioner Absent: Allen McCarty


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd Jones, County Clerk
Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the April 25, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Ms. Marilee Gardner of the Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints, and asked
her to give the invocation.  Ms. Gardner offered the invocation.  


Commissioner Ognio led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation of May 2013 as “Foster Care Month” and the week of May 13-17, 2013 as “Foster Parent
Appreciation Week”.







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 2


Commissioner Barlow read the proclamation declaring May 2013 as “Foster Care Month” and the week of May
13-17, 2013 as “Foster Parent Appreciation Week”.  Ms. Angela Hinton-Fonda, representing the Fayette County
Family and Children Services Board, commented on the needs in Fayette County and the limited foster care
resources available.  She called on Fayette County citizens to consider becoming foster parents.  A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


2. Proclamation of May 4, 2013 as “Pet Appreciation Day”.


Chairman Steve Brown read the proclamation establishing May 4, 2013 as “Pet Appreciation Day.”  Dr. Vince
Obsitnik of The Animal Medical Clinic commented that Pet Appreciation Day would have events for kids, animal
demonstrations, and other activities bringing awareness for pet appreciation.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton read the Board of Commissioners Public Hearing Procedures into the
record and introduced the first item for consideration under Public Hearing.  A copy of the procedures, identified
as “Attachment 3", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-11, deleting, in its entirety, the
section entitled Illegal Nonconforming Lots under the Land Use Element, Future Land Use Map, and
Narrative of the Fayette County Comprehensive Plan.


Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton gave a brief overview of staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 2013-
11.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to adopt Resolution 2013-1, deleting, in its entirety, the section entitled Illegal
Nonconforming Lots under the Land Use Element, Future Land Use Map, and Narrative of the Fayette County
Comprehensive Plan.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  Discussion followed.  The motion passed
4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.  A copy of the request and Resolution 2013-11, identified as
“Attachment 4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


4. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-02 amending the Fayette County
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, regarding Article III., Article IV., Article V., and
Article VII. concerning the deletion of all sections of the zoning ordinance related to the Legal
Nonconforming Status (LNS) rezoning procedure.


Zoning Administrator Dennis Dutton gave a brief overview of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-
02.


No one spoke in favor of or in opposition to this request.


Commissioner Oddo moved to accept staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-02 amending the
Fayette County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, regarding Article III., Article IV., Article V.,
and Article VII. concerning the deletion of all sections of the zoning ordinance related to the Legal







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 3


Nonconforming Status (LNS) rezoning procedure.  Commissioners Ognio and Barlow seconded the motion.
No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.  A copy of the
request and Ordinance 2013-02, identified as “Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made an official
part hereof.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


Henry Dickerson: Mr. Dickerson submitted a written petition against the Stormwater fees to the Board, which was
signed by many of the residents living near Lake Horton.  He questioned the need for residents to pay Stormwater fees
when their water runs into Lake Horton, questioned how the collected funds were being spent, and suggested that the
Board would not be reelected since nobody in Fayette County was happy about receiving a Stormwater bill.  A copy of
the written petition, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Lee Hearn: Mr. Hearn questioned the Board’s transparency in the following areas: 1) LOST renegotiations and
agreements, 2) Approval of Cigna as the employees’ new health insurance provider, 3) the Board “sticking it to the
employees” by taking away health insurance benefits; 4) removing public safety personnel from the Pension Board, 5)
not informing the citizens about how they want to address roads for Fayette County’s future and potentially exposing
Fayette County due to decisions made about the intersection of West Fayetteville Bypass and State Route 92, and 6)
not maintaining the rural character of Fayette County by rezoning land for Pinewood Studios. Mr. Hearn closed saying
his family has paid taxes into Fayette County for over 100 years, that he has a deep love for Fayette County, and that
was why he would continue coming to the meetings. 


Wayne Kendall: Mr. Kendall said he wanted to talk about Commissioner Ognio’s item at the April 11, 2013 meeting
concerning referring former County Attorney Scott Bennett to the State Court Solicitor Jamie Inagawa.  He pointed out
that Mr. Inagawa had previously sued Fayette County, and in doing so he had hired Mr. Richard P. Lindsey as his
attorney.  He said that Mr. Lindsey was the same attorney Mr. Bennett allegedly hired to sue Fayette County, so there
could be a conflict of interest.  Mr. Kendall suggested that the Board of Commissioners could call for a civil investigative
grand jury to investigate several issues that he contended were still lingering.  Mr. Kendall then enumerated those
outstanding issues that he thought should be investigated.  He then repeated that the Board could call for a civil
investigative grand jury, and he explained how the process could work.  


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner said at the last meeting he said something about the parking at Lake Horton.  He publically
thanked Water System Director Tony Parrott for calling him and explaining the situation to him.  He said he had to admit
that if he was sitting in Mr. Parrott’s seat, he would likely make the same decision.  He thought coming to the Board
meeting and expressing his opinion and getting feedback was good, and he thanked the Board for that.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Barlow moved to accept the Consent Agenda.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  


Captain Doug Morris, who has served as a Fayette County firefighter for 27 years, spoke in opposition to Consent
Agenda Item 7.  He specifically commented on the portion of the Consent Agenda pertaining to the loss of retirement
benefits.  His three main points were: 1) the benefit retirement was in existence before the Defined Benefit Plan was put
into place, and it was part of the decision people used to switch to a Defined Benefit Plan, 2) removing the retirement
benefit would specifically target long-term, loyal employees, and 3) this action would compel public safety workers to
remain on the job until they were 65 years old, and that there were problems with having active police officers and
firefighters who are that old.  He implored the Board not to remove the retirement benefits.







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 4


County Administrator Steve Rapson largely agreed with Mr. Morris, but added that keeping the benefit in place created
a large fiscal impact, and he explained the nature of fiscal impact.  


Commissioner Oddo said he appreciated Mr. Morris’ concerns, but that there were many things he wanted to have but
could not afford to have.  He said he wanted to do many things but did not have the funding to do so.  He added that the
Board has responsibility to the taxpayers and to the staff, but it also has a fiduciary responsibility that cannot be ignored.


Mr. Rapson spoke about two benefits the County has enacted to replace the outgoing benefit; namely, the ability for
County employees to purchase family health insurance at the County’s rates and to participate in a Health Savings
Account (HSA). 


Chairman Brown said there were no easy decisions, but that the County was in a real bind.  He said the Board did not
take pride in taking anything away from anybody.  He said the County is in a really bad situation, and that the Board had
opportunities to do things years ago when both he and Commissioner McCarty were on the Board, and those requests
were voted down each time.  He said the County is where it is, that the Board promised its constituents that it would
provide a balanced budget, and that the County would do whatever it takes to get to the balanced budget.  He said this
action had nothing to do against anybody who is employed with the County but that the constituents are the number one
responsibility.  


The motion to approve the Consent Agenda passed 4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.


5. Approval of Finance policy and procedure amendments as outlined during the April 5, 2013 Retreat.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


6. Approval of Human Resource policy and procedure amendments as outlined during the April 5, 2013
Retreat.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 8", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


7. Approval of staff’s request to delegate the authority to amend Human Resources policies and
procedures to the County Administrator and the Human Resources Director, and to delegate the
authority to amend Finance policies and procedures to the County Administrator and the Chief Financial
Officer.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 9", follows these minutes and is made an
official part hereof.


8. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Bid #873- Grass Mowing Services to Star Valley
Landscapes Solutions, BeautyScapes Management, Inc., and TrueGreen Landcare, LLC., at an
aggregate amount of $83,390.80, and authorization for the Chairman to sign related contracts.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 10", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


9. Approval of the April 5, 2013 Board of Commissioners Retreat Minutes and the April 11, 2013 Board of
Commissioners Minutes. 


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 5


10. Consideration of Commissioner Barlow’s request that the Board of Commissioners endorse Fayette’s
Biggest Food Drive.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Ms. Arwen Mullikin and Ms. Marilee Gardner to the Board, and he asked Ms.
Mullikin to make a few comments on the request.  Ms. Mullikin stated that the County has the opportunity to
fill a 53-foot trailer full of food during the fall, and that the food would go to the most vulnerable people in
Fayette County.  She said the people’s hearts have gone out to seniors, the low-income people, and children
as economics times have tightened and things get harder for them.  He said the County used to have job fairs,
and this effort is in lieu of the job fairs because employers are not in a position to hire this year.  She said it was
felt that something needed to be done to help the citizens of Fayette County, and since Fayette County has
always taken care of its own.  She asked the Board and the citizens to come alongside those who are helping
make this happen, and that they would give all of their efforts.  She asked the Board to give its credibility and
backing to the cause so that much more than a trailer could be filled in an effort to help many in the county.
She hoped that the Board would make the gazebo available on September 14, and that the County would make
a proclamation to give credibility to the cause.


Chairman Brown moved that the Fayette County Government official endorse Fayette’s Biggest Food Drive,
and to offer the County facilities for collection.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No discussion
followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.  A copy of the request, identified
as “Attachment 11", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


11. Discussion of Fayette County’s current and prior ethics ordinances.


Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport explained that the County was in a position to revisit its Ethics
Ordinance, and sought direction on how to proceed with the task. 


Chairman Brown stated that the current Ethics Ordinance was substandard and needed to be changed.  He
explained why the previous Ethic Ordinance had been changed the current Ethics Ordinance, and he thought
that the changes were done to the detriment of the citizens of Fayette County.  He thought it represented a
careless effort and that the County could do much better.  He said he preferred to have an Ethics Ordinance
that was more along the lines of the previous Ethics Ordinance, and he wanted to see a draft written that was
similar to the previous Ethics Ordinance.


Commissioner Oddo said he was concerned that the current Ethics Ordinance was an example of what
happens when someone tries to account for every possibility.  He understood that having an Ethics Ordinance
was critically important, but that it was also “a very intangible type of thing since you cannot write a rule for
everything.”  He said he wanted to see something done to simplify what the County currently has in an effort
to cover bases, and he suggested that the Board should be able to easily navigate the Ethics Ordinance without
having to dig through subparagraphs.  


Chairman Brown added that he wanted to see ethics training required in the new ordinance.  He recalled that
during his political days in Peachtree City, one of the things that was initiated and mandated was that all ethics
members go through ethics training.  He felt that citizens who were empaneled to sit on an Ethics Board should
be trained, but if the Ethics Ordinance was going to be changed to allow only members of the judiciary to be
empaneled then there would likely not be a need to have those members trained in ethics.  He repeated that
the members should be ethically trained and should feel comfortable on the Board.







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 6


Commissioner Ognio said there needed to be consideration on who was appointed to the Board.  He admitted
that there was a good attempt to have citizens on the Ethics Board, but he also agreed with Chairman Brown
that they need to be trained.  He suggested that it would be just as good to have judges or others in the legal
profession empaneled so that the proceedings would be “much more professionally done.”  He said this
arrangement has been adopted by other areas, and that Fayette County should look at the other counties to
learn about how they seat their Ethics Boards.  He added that the County should want to strengthen its Ethics
Ordinance, and not have ethics that were so loose that there effectively was no accountability. 


Mr. Davenport replied that he would produce drafts with Options A, B, and C for the Board’s consideration.  He
pointed out that the original Ethics Ordinance was an eight-page, double-spaced ordinance with two pages of
procedure and six pages of standards, and that the current Ethics Ordinance is eleven pages long of which
eight pages address procedures.  He said he would do a comparison of the two ordinances, and that the first
draft he would produce would be a working draft.  Commissioner Ognio added that this process would involve
public hearings so that the citizens would be able to provide their insight.


Commissioner Barlow said he liked how the previous Ethics Ordinance allowed for the empaneling of three
attorneys from Fayette County once a complaint was filed.  He said that Board would come together, hear the
complaint, make a ruling or recommendation, and then would be dissolved.  He added that if a new ethics
complaint was received that a new Ethics Board would be empaneled.  He liked that the previous Ethics Board
was made of people who were legal in profession and who knew how to enforce the laws, interpret them, and
rule on them. 


Mr. Davenport said he would prepare a draft of the Ethics Ordinance, and that it would be ready for distribution
and discussion at the May 23, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  The Board directed Mr. Davenport to
prepare a draft Ethics Ordinance for discussion.  The Board did not take an official vote on this matter.  A copy
of the request, identified as “Attachment 12", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


12. Consideration of Chairman Steve Brown’s request to be reimbursed for legal expenses, in the amount
of $2,128.85, incurred in his defense against ethics charges filed by former County Commissioner
Robert Horgan.


Chairman Brown recused himself from this discussion, turned the floor over to Vice Chairman Charles Oddo,
and left the room for the entirety of this matter.


Vice Chairman Oddo and Commissioner Ognio asked the public if they had any comments on this item.


Frank Gardner: Mr. Gardner said he wanted the Board to set up some type of procedure so that any complaint
that is filed against a county employee, that is not covered by insurance, that the county would pay for a lawyer
to take care of it.  He said the Board was in a high profile position and there is always somebody who wants
to have a vendetta against somebody.  He thought it was a shame that people who work for the county would
have to take money out of their pockets to defend themselves.  County Administrator Rapson informed Mr.
Gardner that, from a county employee’s perspective, employees are covered, but that this issue concerned the
Chairman who is an elected person and is not a county employee.  


Commissioner Barlow said he did quite a bit of research on this item and said he talked to a number of the
citizens.  He said he knew what he felt in his heart, but he wanted to hear from others.  He explained that he
had come to understand that Chairman Brown was working for the benefit of Fayette County  was not pursuing







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 7


something personally.  He said, consequently, it made it easy for him to decide that the County should cover
Chairman Brown’s expenses “since he was working to do something that was going to involve the good of
Fayette County”.


Commissioner Ognio said Chairman Brown was “acting in official capacity with the County and that created the
situation.”  He said, for that reason, it looked like the Chairman should be reimbursed.


Vice Chairman Oddo read a prepared statement explaining his thoughts.  The following transcript has been
included into the minutes at the request of Commissioner Oddo.  The audio recording for the transcript begins
at 8:12:43 and concludes at 8:21:43.


I’m gonna take a liberty here again, because I was kind of thrust into the same position back in


January when we had a special meeting regarding the Ethics Ordinance., and I did read some


comments that I had prepared.  And please forgive my voice as I’ve been dry.  This is an important


issue to, it’s an important issue to the County.  I’ve, being in the line of business I am, which is, I


work with my brothers in their, in our tax, well, accounting business, but its taxes; people think the


15th is the end of tax season.  It isn’t, it runs all the way through April at full, break-neck speed, and


so I’ve been involved with that with my brothers, trying to do so many things in getting ready for a


trip we have to take to Savannah here for the County.  And this came up, and I could not let it go


without putting some thoughts down here in regards to the fact that I really didn’t have time to do


it.  But it is very critical, and I would like to share with you folks what I was thinking.


When I ran for office, this is important, when I ran for office, my goal was to communicate with the


citizens and to let all know why I make the decisions I make.  My decisions may or may not be


popular, but they will be reasoned.  So I wish to take just a few moments to provide insight into how


I will vote on this issue, and why.  I will be happy to speak privately with anyone who wishes to


discuss the subject with me further.  And just for the record, my cell phone is (770) 843-4034.  I do


answer it.


Now, considering the facts as I see them in this particular case, and I stress the facts in this case


because prior history should not be an influencing factor, it’s ironic that the question of reimbursing


Commissioner Brown is, in itself, an ethical one.  Philosophically, I believe very government owes


its citizens the presumption of innocence and must be extremely cautious in wielding the power it


has been given through law.  Verdicts via technicalities make a mockery of the intent and spirit of


the law.  The spirit of our Ethics Ordinance, the fostering of our moral values, should never be made


subservient to the letter of the law, or we will destroy the very reason for its being; that of dealing


with what is good and bad and with moral duty and obligation.  That, by the way, is from Merriam


Webster, it’s the definition of ethics.  


So all of you know, I did not know Commissioner Brown prior to my campaign for the Board of


Commissioners, nor any of the other parties here involved in the ethics or who had any part in the


ethics hearing.  As far as I’m concerned, their names could have been X, Y and Z.  So here is my


basis for the decision I will make this evening.


During the January 29 special meeting of the Board of Commissioners, I stated my beliefs that


ethics, by its very nature, is intuitive.  Please go back, they are recorded in the minutes; they can be


viewed.  And I think they are important.  It’s my belief that it is impossible to create a one-size-fits-







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 8


all ordinance that can fairly and successfully govern ethics in every situation.  You might bear that


in mind when you are thinking what I might say.  Only once has anyone ever written an effective


ethics ordinance that does apply to every situation, and, amazing, He did it with only ten sentences.


Aside from that one instance, I do not believe the intent of ethics can be committed 100% to paper


by way of law or ordinance.  The written word is fixed and incapable of the human quality that


allows us to assess and discern.  The written word is incapable of stepping back, looking at the


entire situation from beginning to end, assimilating the obvious, discerning the obscure, and


formulating a conclusion.  Therefore, in our attempt to encourage ethics in Fayette County, the


written ordinance should be used as an aid and not exclusively as the means to the end.  In the


Ethics Hearing against Commissioner Brown, we were playing by our own house rules, so to speak,


and not dealing with law and criminality.  Therefore, we had the ability to follow the facts, diverge


from the written ordinance where reasonable, and arrive at the most just conclusion.  When written


rules conflict with good sense, good sense should take precedence over the rules.  Looking at the


entire situation, beginning to end, I saw an Ethics Board hurriedly seated after two years of being


vacant to hear a complaint about a former county employee.  There was little time to vet the


candidates, there was no public discussion from the Board of Commissioners, alternate candidates


were not considered publically by the Board of Commissioners, the selections were rushed.  Quite


honestly, one could argue that the entire process used to seat this Ethics Board was itself less than


ethical, and as such should not have had standing to judge ethics.  The Ethics Board was populated


quickly, methodically, and as if selections were foregone conclusions.  The voting seemed a formality


without deference to the very thing the Board is obligated to pursue; namely, ethics.  


I then saw a former commissioner accuse a sitting commission, Commissioner Brown, of violating


the Ethics Ordinance during a sequence of events that I was part of, and during which I perceived


Commissioner Brown to be conducting himself in the best interests of the citizens of Fayette County.


I saw a member of the Ethics Board, not on the most cordial of terms with Commissioner Brown


otherwise, assert that the facts in this case did not merit continuation of the hearing and ultimately


step down after good sense did not result in dismissal.  I saw the remaining original members of the


Ethics Board find that Commissioner Brown did not act for personal gain.  Yet again, good sense


apparently took a back seat as the Ethics Board found Commissioner Brown technically guilty,


placing a black mark on his career.  That mark will follow him forever and suggest that he did


something unethical, when in fact he did not.  Unless he can remove it through the courts.  No


employee of Fayette County should be, and he is an elected official, but I’m saying employee as a


group, no employee of Fayette County should be put in that position regardless of his or her name.


I then saw the same former Commissioner bring forth yet again another complaint against


Commissioner Brown who again, I perceived, has acted in the best interests of the citizens of Fayette


County rather than for personal gain.  This time, the Board by a split decision, was able to dismiss


the case that simply was not warranted.  Based on what I have witnessed, on my ability to step back


and look at the situation as a whole, I cannot justify the cause for the hearings nor the guilty verdict.


The observations exacerbated by the fact that I witnessed a recently former Fayette County official


bring charges against a current Fayette County official for reasons that I cannot be sure were not


rooted in their past, fractious relationship nor for reasons only in the best interest in the county. 


So the question to answer is, is it fair for Commissioner Brown, should he be marked as unethical


by the county he was serving, if in order to serve the best interest of the county he technically


violated an ordinance.  I don’t believe so.  The question then becomes is it fair that Commissioner


Brown pay the legal expense to absolve himself of the verdict.  Legally, I do not believe the county







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 9


is obligated to do so, and under other circumstances I would say “no”.  If I could feel reasonable


sure that there were legitimate, unethical lapses on Commissioner Brown’s part resulting in the


ethics complaints and the subsequent guilty verdict, I would not consider reimbursing legal expenses


as viable.  But I am not at all comfortable with the entire process from the creation of this Ethics


Board to the verdict handed down.  Regardless of anyone’s feelings about the individuals involved


in this episode, the facts were far less damning than must be necessary to arrive at a guilty verdict.


Therefore, ethically, I believe reimbursement is the proper thing to do, and I will vote in favor of


reimbursing the expenses.  


Commissioner Ognio moved to reimburse Steve Brown for legal expenses in the amount of $2,128.85 incurred
in his defense against ethics charges filed by former County Commissioner Robert Horgan.  Commissioner
Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 3-0 with Chairman Brown being
recused from the vote and Commissioner McCarty being absent.  A copy of the request, identified as
“Attachment 13", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


The County Marshal brought Chairman Brown back to the meeting after the vote was taken.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Time and Attendance Policy:  County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board that it previously approved
Human Resources Policy 432.01- Time and Attendance.  He said the policy it did not really state how “Kelly Hours” would
be held.  He explained Kelly Hours are two-hour increments that firefighters earn in regards to showing up prior to the
shift changes.  He said Kelly Hours are not part of the overtime policy change, and he wanted to make sure people
understood that because it is actually part of the annual compensation for those individuals.  He said this was one issue
that the firefighters were asking about, and he wanted to put this issue on record on how the policy was being
interpreted.  


Newsletter:  County Administrator Steve Rapson pointed out, yesterday, the County rolled out an option on the County
website for a newsletter and email distribution.  He said if the people are interested in getting things in regards to county
news, press releases, employment opportunities, library events, or Stormwater newsletters, the people could go on the
website and sign up for it, and the information would be provide to them.


Clerk of Court to Fund Codification:  County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that Superior Court Clerk Sheila
Studdard has agreed to fund the codification of $22,950.00 out of the law library.


Response to Mr. Hearn’s Public Comments:  County Administrator Steve Rapson replied to some of Mr. Hearn’s
comments concerning: 1) LOST renegotiations, 2) Cigna, 3) removing public safety employees from the Pension Board,
and 4) transparency.


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Two Executive Session Item:  Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that he had two items for Executive
Session; one involving threatened litigation and the other involving real estate matter.







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 10


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


 Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow commented on an article printed in The Citizen, told of the vows he has
made, and updated the Board on his recent attendance of the Georgia Public Health Association’s Annual Conference.
He spoke about the threat of childhood obesity in Georgia, and he spoke of the efforts to make Georgia a healthy state.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio said some of the things Mr. Hearn said bothered him.  He spoke about
how the employees have come to him thanking him for the changes in healthcare and how the employees have indicated
that they like the new healthcare plan.  He said he did not know where Mr. Hearn was getting information that the
employees were unhappy.  He also spoke on the Board’s decision to rezone property for Pinewood Studios, and he
commented on how transparent the County actually is.  He said the Board was looking for feedback, and that by getting
feedback the Board could evaluate how to best serve its citizens.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo pointed out that the Board has a responsibility to Fayette County’s
taxpayers.  He said it is very easy to say “we should have this program or that program”, but he said the Board also
needs to hear who is going to pay for the programs.  He said the Board does not enjoy making cuts, and he asked for
understanding since there was a long way to go in helping the County move forward.  


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio again responded to Mr. Hearn by agreeing that the Board was against
bypasses, said the Board is dealing with many important issues first, and adding that the Board would soon address its
plans for future traffic relief.  He said the Board had to do “first things first”.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown replied to Mr. Dickerson’s comments about the reason Fayette County pays for
other services with the Stormwater fees, and he explained that those services are mandated or required by the State
of Georgia.  Chairman Brown informed Mr. Kendall that he had already written State Court Solicitor Jamie Inagawa
sharing the same concerns expressed by Mr. Kendall, and that the letter was open records obtainable from the County
Clerk.  Chairman Brown said he wished Mr. Hearn would stay through the meeting to hear answers to his complaints,
and he said that was the fair thing to do.  He then addresses some of the items Mr. Hearn spoke about including 1) LOST
renegotiations, 2) Pinewood Studios, 3) and the contention that the County did not comply with the SPLOST project list.
He explained that the East Fayetteville Bypass was the number one priority on the project list, and that a memo on the
priority list had been prepared and signed by Mr. Hearn while he was working as the engineer for Fayette County’s
Engineering Department.  Chairman Brown noted that the East Fayetteville Bypass is the only road on the priority list
that was not built.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow said he noticed that Mr. Kendall, Mr. Gardner, and Mr. Dickerson were
still in the audience.  He said there were four people who spoke during public comment and only one is “woefully absent”
from the meeting– Mr. Hearn.  He said it speaks to the credibility of the folks who spoke and stayed to hear the answer
since they care about what the comments would be.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo wanted everyone to know that this board understands there is a difference
between Stormwater management and infrastructure repair.  He pointed out that there are two separate items going on
that are being managed, and not just one item.  







Minutes
April 25, 2013
Page Number 11


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Three Items for Executive Session: Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport pointed out that the April 11, 2013
Executive Session Minuets needed to also be reviewed in Executive Session.  Chairman Brown clarified that one Real
Estate item, one Threatened Litigation item, and review of Executive Session Minutes needed to be considered in
Executive Session.  


Chairman Brown moved to convene in Executive Session for one Real Estate, one Threatened Litigation, and one set
of Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed
4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 8:44 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 8:56 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Approval to Sign the Executive Session Affidavit:  Commissioner Ognio moved to
exit Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the Executive Session Affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded
the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.  A copy of the
Executive Session Affidavit, identified as “Attachment 14", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the April 11, 2013 Executive Session Minutes.
Commissioners Oddo and Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with
Commissioner McCarty being absent.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn the April 25, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.  Commissioner Ognio
seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0 with Commissioner McCarty being absent.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the April 25, 2013 meeting at 8:57 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 9th day of May 2013.


___________________________________
        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


May 9, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation to be presented to the Fayette County Farm Bureau


recognizing May 14, 2013 as Farmer Appreciation Day.


PUBLIC HEARING:


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


2.2. Approval of Defined Benefit Plan amendments as outlined during the 


April 5, 2013 Retreat.


3. Approval of staff’s request recommendation to reduce the County’s


participation in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program,


including the outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation and the


associated interest-rate swap agreement by the amount of the account


balance determined to be “excess funds”.


4. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement


with the City of Fayetteville, allowing for the County to resurface


Beauregard Boulevard, Bradford Square, Creekside Trail, Hillsdale Drive,


and North Park Drive within the City of Fayetteville, and authorization for


the Chairman to execute said agreement.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to make application to the Hazardous


Waste Trust Fund (HWTS) for reimbursement of groundwater monitoring


expenses associated with Monitored Natural Attenuation (MNA) at the


Southside Landfill, and approval for the Chairman to sign Resolution 2013-


12 granting staff authorization to make application for reimbursement.


6. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allow the City of


Fayetteville to use a waterline easement on Highway 85 to service 1391


Highway 85 with sewer, with the stipulation that the Water System will


review the plans, will conduct an on-site inspection, and will be given as-


built drawings.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
May 9, 2013
Page Number 2


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


7. Approval of the April 11, 2013 Board of Commissioners Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty was not present


for this meeting.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of Defined Benefit Plan Resolution, Adoption Agreement and Policy 424.04. 


                                                   


The following Defined Benefit (DB) Plan amendments are presented for your consideration and approval. 


 


a. Eliminate Pre-Retirement Death Benefit; (Existing & New Employees) 


b. Eliminate Disability Benefit; (Existing & New Employees) 


c. Retirement Benefit Formula - Reduce Benefit Multiplier; (New Employees) 


d. Retirement Benefit Formula - Increase Normal Retirement Age; (New Employees)   


e. Retirement Benefit Formula - Increase Average Annual Compensation; (New Employees) 


f.  Retirement Benefit Formula - Increase Vesting Period revisions. (New Employees) 


g. DB Policy 424.04 establishing the Employee DB/DC Election Option and DB/DC Plan contribution. (New Employees) 


(Attachment 1-Retreat White Paper; Attachment 2-PowerPoint Presentation)  


 


The Defined Benefit Plan Resolution, Adoption agreement and Policy 424.04 are presented for your formal consideration and approval.


Approval of Defined Benefit Plan Resolution, Adoption Agreement, and Policy 424.04 as outlined.


Not Applicable.


Yes April 5, 2013 BOC Retreat


No No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


ConsentMay 9, 2013







FAYETTE COUNTY               
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 


      HR – BENEFITS  
Defined Benefit  


424.04  
 
PURPOSE  
It is the purpose of the Benefit Plan to help provide County employees with a current, competitive, and 
comprehensive compensation package by supplementing the county pay plan and thereby broadening the 
compensation base of County employees.  
 
The plan shall be uniformly administered in accordance with the applicable provisions of these Rules and 
Regulations which shall govern all matters relative to the benefits to be received by covered County 
employees.  
 
All actions within the realm of the benefit plan are subject to availability of funds and shall be 
appropriately modified and controlled in this regard by the County Commission.  
 
Changes in some of the benefit plan may, as appropriate, be recommended and approved with the Human 
Resources Director and County Administrator approval. Upon adoption and effectuation, the benefit plan 
shall constitute the official benefit compensation for positions under the System. Benefits are a privilege 
of employment and can be changed or revoked at any time.  
 
As a result of employment with Fayette County, an employee who meets the eligibly requirements shall 
be eligible for all applicable benefits.  
 
Benefits are personal to the employee and cannot be assigned to other employees.  
 
POLICY  
There shall be a consistent and uniform process for a County employee to participate in the Defined 
Benefit Plan.  
 
PROCEDURE  
 
Defined Benefit (401a)  
Fayette County maximum contribution towards this plan will be 3.8% of approved payroll. Employee’s 
mandatory contributions would be increased to absorb increases required above the County 3.8% fixed 
contribution over time. 
 
Eligibility  
Benefits are available to all regular full-time employees who make the one-time irrevocable election to 
participate in the Defined Benefit Plan.                                                                                          







ATTACHMENT 1 


Defined Benefit Plan Proposal 


Background 


Fayette County offers a DB (Defined Benefit) Plan administered by the ACCG (Association County 


Commissioners of Georgia) which has provided retirement plan services to jurisdictions throughout Georgia 


since 1968. GEBCorp (Government Employee Benefits Corporation of Georgia) administers the Defined 


Benefit Plan and is a wholly owned subsidiary of ACCG. GEBCorp was created for three primary reasons:  


 


1. Provide local, personal service to the ACCG 457 Deferred Compensation Program and 401(a) Defined 


Contribution Program by finding or creating an alternative to the existing programs;  


2. Strengthen ACCG’s control over the type and quality of service, required from its members and their 


employees, for the 457, 401(a) and defined benefit programs; and  


3. Integrate the service and administration of all types of plans to the maximum extent possible.  


 


The ACCG Board of Managers appoints a Board of Directors that manages GEBCorp with an eye toward 


increasing efficiency, competitiveness and service to Georgia’s counties, county employees, and other public 


entities. 


 


Defined Benefit Plan: A defined benefit plan provides a fixed monthly benefit at retirement, payable over your 


lifetime. In addition, you may elect an optional form of benefit payment that will pay a monthly benefit to your 


beneficiary after your death. Your monthly benefit is based on compensation, years of service, your employer’s 


benefit formula and the benefit option you select at retirement. Since this is a guaranteed benefit, you are not 


responsible for the investment risk. This type of plan provides participants with a secure source of retirement 


income, is a significant benefit to career employees and allows employers to provide a targeted level of 


retirement income. Full time employees employed for at least one year are eligible to participate and become 


vested after five years of service to receive monthly benefits once retired.  


 


The retirement plan is designed to supplement the employee's Social Security benefits and their personal 


savings (including the County's defined contribution plans) by providing additional income at retirement. 


Fayette County's employee participation is a mandatory contributory plan where the employee and County pay 


a share of the cost of the retirement plan. The County has no fiduciary responsibility for the plan. Annual 


actuarial reviews are performed and funding requirements are adjusted as needed based upon directions 


received from the GEBCorp.  


 







$1,300,000


$1,400,000


$1,500,000


$1,600,000


$1,700,000


$1,800,000


$1,900,000


$2,000,000


$2,100,000


$2,200,000


$2,300,000


$2,400,000


2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023


D
B
 P
la
n
 P
ro
je
ct
ed


 C
o
st


DB Plan Analysis ‐ Excluding item #3


Existing DB Plan Projection


Existing/Modified DB Plan Projection


 


As of January 1, 2013, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, Fayette County has 784 participants 


consisting of the following: 42 retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits; 69 vested terminated 


employees not yet receiving benefits and 673 Active employees. The County is required to contribute amounts 


necessary to fund the plan. The actuarial assumptions included (a) a rate of return on the investment of present 


and future assets of 7.75% per year, compounded annually and net of investment expenses, (b) projected salary 


increases of 3.5% - 6.0% based upon age and 3.0% for inflation. 


 


Employees can also elect to contribute to the County’s 457 DC (Defined Contribution) Plan up to fifteen 


thousand dollars per calendar year with the County matching the employee’s contribution into a 401(a) plan. 


Participation in the plan is optional and requires the County to contribute an amount equal to 50% up to the first 


5.0% an employee defers, for a maximum county match of 2.5%. Employers' contributions are fully vested after 


the participant completes five full years of service. Staff has met with ACCG representatives and has requested 


DB Plan modifications and projected impacts associated with these modifications for your review and approval.  


 


Option #1 - Amendment of Existing Defined Benefit Plan: (Attachment) 


1. Death Benefits1 - Eliminate Pre-Retirement Death Benefits - $102,279 


2. Disability Benefits1 - Eliminate Disability Benefit - $91,823 


3. Mandatory employee contribution2 - Dollar-Dollar Offset  - Each 1.0% increase – $27,771 


4. Retirement Benefit Formula2 – Reducing Benefit Multiplier 1.50% to 1.25% year/service - $22,217 


5. Retirement Benefit Formula2 - Normal Retirement Age – 65 years to 67 years $18,512 


6. Retirement Benefit Formula2 Average Annual Compensation – 7-year to 10-year average - $11,553 


7. Retirement Benefit Formula Increase Vesting Period2 - 5 years to 10 years - $4,268 
1Define Benefit Plan Amendment includes all plan participants, including retirees or beneficiaries already in “pay” status.  
2Define Benefit Plan Amendment impacts only future county employees – no impact to existing workforce. 


 


 


Option #1 (excludes #3) These DB Plan 


Amendments decrease future costs an average 


of $493,368, or 24.8% a year.  


 


Reducing the actuarial DB Plan assumptions 


saves $4,933,680 over the next 10 year period. 


 


 







Option #2 – Hybrid - Freeze DB Plan & Convert to a DC (Defined Contribution) Plan: 


This approach freezes the existing retirement defined benefit plan and implements a defined contribution plan in 


its place for new hires. This follows the “new” trend among private defined benefit plan sponsors of “freezing” 


pension plans, and continues the well-documented and long-term decline of “traditional” pension plans. Hard-


frozen plans represent a 50% increase in the percentage of insured plans that were hard-frozen in just two years. 


Freezing a plan has only a modest immediate impact because it eliminates future benefit accruals, but the 


county continues to have an obligation to fund existing and future shortfalls. Freezing a plan does not affect the 


level of benefits plan participants have accrued at the time of the freeze. Retired participants and separated 


vested participants will receive all the benefits they were expecting and entitled to under the terms of the plan. 


This represents a shift from emphasizing income protection in retirement through defined benefit plans to one 


featuring wealth accumulation through defined contribution plans. This embraces a more mobile workforce who 


has accepted the portability of DC plan benefits, while resolving employers concerns with liabilities associated 


with DB plans becoming too large and too volatile.  


 


Keep in mind that freezing the Defined Benefit Plan removes this option as an employment incentive tool that 


may have a significant impact to public safety recruitment and retention. There is not only financial benefit to 


the employee but the intangible benefit to the workforce in terms of morale and retention. We must also keep in 


mind that the county contribution is 3.8% and replacing this retirement option would more than likely require a 


larger contribution that would have a negative impact to the budget. 


 


 







FAYETTE COUNTY, GA.
Defined Benefit Plan


Board of Commissioners 
May 9, 2013


‐ 1 ‐







Amendment of Existing Defined Benefit Plan: 


1. Death Benefits - Eliminate Pre-Retirement Death Benefits - $102,279
2. Disability Benefits - Eliminate Disability Benefit - $91,823
3. Retirement Benefit Formula – Reducing Benefit Multiplier 1.50% to 1.25%  


year/service - $22,217
4. Retirement Benefit Formula - Normal Retirement Age – 65 years to 67 


years $18,512
5. Retirement Benefit Formula Average Annual Compensation – 7-year to 10-


year average - $11,553
6. Retirement Benefit Formula Increase Vesting Period - 5 years to 10 years -


$4,268
‐ 2 ‐


Defined Benefit Plan
Step #1 DB Plan Proposal







‐ 3 ‐


Defined Benefit Plan
Amendments Actuarial Impact


Plan Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023


Benefit Multiplier: 1.50% to 1.25% 22,217       43,331       64,114       83,643       103,971     125,443     148,403     170,453     194,586     219,565      
Retirement Age: 65 to 67 18,512       36,105       53,423       69,696       86,634       104,525     123,657     142,030     162,138     182,952      
Avg Comp ‐ High 7 Yr ‐ 10 Yr. 11,553       22,532       33,339       43,494       54,065       65,230       77,169       88,635       101,184     114,174      
Vesting ‐ 5 Yrs to 10 Yrs 4,268          8,325          12,318       16,070       19,976       24,101       28,512       32,748       37,385       42,184         
Subtotal $56,550 $110,293 $163,194 $212,903 $264,646 $319,300 $377,740 $433,866 $495,293 $558,875


Disability Benefit $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823
Pre‐Retirement Death Benefit $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279
Subtotal $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102


Grand Total $250,652 $304,395 $357,296 $407,005 $458,748 $513,402 $571,842 $627,968 $689,395 $752,977


Cumlative Impact $4,933,680


Fayette County Defined Benefit Plan







‐ 4 ‐


Defined Benefit Plan
Actuarial Growth Projection







‐ 5 ‐


Defined Benefit Plan
DB Plan Step #1 Impact







Retirement Plan Approach: 


1. Employee – makes a one-time irrevocable election into their retirement 
plan of choice – DB Plan or DC Plan


2. DB Plan:
1. Mandatory 2.5% employee contribution
2. Eligibility based upon Step #1 - DB Plan Amendments
3. Mandatory contribution will increase over time


3. DC Plan:
1. County contributes 3.8% into DC Plan
2. County contribution vests to employee over a two-year period


‐ 6 ‐


Defined Benefit Plan
Step #2 DB Plan Proposal







‐ 7 ‐


DB Plan Step #2
Employee Selects Type Plan


New Hire


DB 
Plan


DC 
Plan







‐ 8 ‐


DB Plan Step #2
Retirement Plan Contributions


Today’s Contribution (6.3%)
DB Plan – County contribution is 3.8%
DB Plan – Employee contribution is 2.5%


Proposed Contribution (6.3%)
DB Plan – County contribution is 3.8%
DB Plan – Employee contribution is 2.5%


DC Plan - County contribution is 3.8%







‐ 9 ‐


Defined Benefit Plan
DB Plan Existing & Amended







‐ 10 ‐


Defined Benefit Plan
Limit DB County Contribution







Fayette County, Georgia


Questions & Answers


‐ 11 ‐







1 
 


RESOLUTION TO AMEND 
THE ASSOCIATION COUNTY  


COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 
FOR FAYETTE COUNTY EMPLOYEES  


 
WHEREAS, the Fayette County Board of Commissioners (the “Employer”) previously adopted 


Association County Commissioners of Georgia Defined Benefit Plan for Fayette County Employees (the 
“Plan”) through an Adoption Agreement, most recently effective July 1, 2009;  


WHEREAS, the Employer desires to change certain benefits offered under the Plan effective 
April 25, 2013. 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Employer hereby approves any necessary 
amendments to the Plan and to the Adoption Agreement effective April 25, 2013, as follows: 


a. Eliminating the Disability Pension available under the Plan for Participants with a 
Disability Date on or after April 25, 2013. 


b. Eliminating the Disability Death Benefit available under the Plan. 


c. Eliminating the Pre-Retirement Death Benefit available under the Plan. 


d. Eligible Employees with an Employment Commencement Date or Reemployment 
Commencement Date on or after April 25, 2013 shall be eligible for Normal or Late 
Retirement upon the later of attaining age sixty-seven (67) or completing five (5) years of 
Vesting Service. 


e. Eligible Employees with an Employment Commencement Date or Reemployment 
Commencement Date on or after April 25, 2013, shall have a Normal Retirement Benefit 
in the amount of one and one-quarter percent (1.25%) of his or her annualized Average 
Monthly Compensation multiplied by years of Credited Service. 


f. Eligible Employees with an Employment Commencement Date or Reemployment 
Commencement Date on or after April 25, 2013,  shall be zero percent (0%) vested in 
benefits accrued on and after April 25, 2013, until such time as they complete ten (10) 
years of Vesting Service, at which time they shall become one-hundred percent (100%) 
vested. 


g. For Eligible Employees with an Employment Commencement Date or Reemployment 
Commencement Date on or after April 25, 2013, Average Monthly Compensation shall 
mean the arithmetic monthly average of Compensation paid to a Participant by the 
Employer for eighty-four (84) consecutive months of Credited Service immediately 
preceding the Participant's most recent Termination of Employment.  The maximum 
number of most recent consecutive months to consider for the calculation shall be one 
hundred twenty (120). 







2 
 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chair of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 
County, Georgia is hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to take all further actions and to execute 
all documents necessary, including any amendments to the Plan or the Adoption Agreement, to 
implement these resolutions. 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any resolution in conflict with this resolution is hereby 
repealed. 


This ______ day of ________________________, 2013 


 
 FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


By: ________________________________ 


Date: _______________________________ 


Attest: 
 
___________________________________ 
County Clerk 







Fayette County Page 1 of 6 April 25, 2013  


ADOPTION AGREEMENT AMENDMENT #3  
TO ASSOCIATION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA 


DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN  
FOR FAYETTE COUNTY EMPLOYEES 


THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into by Fayette County Board of Commissioners (the 
“Employer). 


W I T N E S S E T H: 


WHEREAS, the Employer maintains the Association County Commissioners of Georgia Defined 
Benefit Plan (the “Plan”) for Fayette County Employees for the benefit of its eligible employees; and 


WHEREAS, the Employer adopted the Plan through an Adoption Agreement, most recently effective 
July 1, 2009;  


WHEREAS, the Employer has approved certain Plan changes effective April 25, 2013;  


WHEREAS, Section 16.02 of the Plan allows the Employer to amend the elective provisions of the 
Adoption Agreement. 


NOW, THEREFORE, the Adoption Agreement is hereby amended as follows: 


1. The Adoption Agreement Addendum, is amended by adding additional Employee Classes as follows: 


Class 4: Eligible Employees post-4/25/13 
Eligible Employees with an Employment Commencement Date or Reemployment Commencement 
Date on or after April 25, 2013. 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 


2. Section 1.08, Average Monthly Compensation, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following language: 


 1.08 AVERAGE MONTHLY COMPENSATION.   


[X] Number of consecutive months to use in the calculation:  eighty-four (84) 


[X] Maximum number of most recent consecutive months to consider for the calculation:  one hundred 
twenty (120) (not less than number above) 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 4 







Fayette County Page 2 of 6 April 25, 2013  


3. Section 5.02, Eligibility for Normal or Late Retirement, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with 
the following language: 


 5.02 
[--] 


ELIGIBILITY FOR NORMAL OR LATE RETIREMENT PENSION. 


The date the Participant attains __________ (____) years of age. 


[X] The later of the date: 


[X] The Participant attains sixty-seven (67) years of age 


[X] The Participant completes five (5) years of Vesting Service 


[--] The earlier of date determined above and the later of the date: 


[--] The Participant attains __________ (____) years of age 


[--] The Participant completes __________ (____) years of Vesting Service 


[--] Other date (specify) (no later than age 65):   


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 4 


4. Section 5.03, Amount of Normal or Late Retirement Pension, is deleted in its entirety and replaced 
with the following language: 


 5.03 
 


AMOUNT OF NORMAL OR LATE RETIREMENT PENSION. 


A Participant’s Normal or Late Retirement Pension shall be calculated using the following 
Pension Benefit Formula(s): 


[X] 


 


Single tiered Formula 


One and one-quarter percent (1.25%) of a Participant's annualized Average 
Monthly Compensation multiplied by years of Credited Service 


[--] 


 


Multi tiered Formula 


__________ percent (______%) of a Participant's annualized Average Monthly 
Compensation up to and including __________ multiplied by years of Credited 
Service, plus 


 __________ percent (______%) of a Participant's annualized Average Monthly 
Compensation above __________ multiplied by years of Credited Service 


[--] 


 


Fixed Dollar Amount 


A fixed dollar amount of $_______ multiplied by years of Credited Service. 
[--] 


 


Percentage of annualized Average Monthly Compensation 


__________ percent (____%) of annualized Average Monthly Compensation 
multiplied by the ratio of years of Credited Service to the total of: (1) the years of 
Credited Service plus (2) the years remaining until the Participant’s Normal 
Retirement Date.  The multiplier shall not be less than zero (0) nor greater than one 
(1). 







Fayette County Page 3 of 6 April 25, 2013  


 All formulas specified in this Section shall be added together to determine the Normal or 
Late Pension benefit. 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 4 


5. Section 8.05, Vesting Schedule, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following language: 


 8.05 
 


VESTING SCHEDULE.   


The Employer elects the following vesting schedule: 


[--] Immediately upon Plan Entry 
Date 


 100% Vested in 
Accrued Benefits 


[X] Full Years of Vesting Service 
With the Employer 


 Percent Vested in 
Accrued Benefit 


 Less than ten (10) years  0% 


 Ten (10) years or more  100% 


    
[--] Full Years of Vesting Service 


With the Employer 
 Percent Vested in 


Accrued Benefit 


 _____ years  _____% 


 _____ years  _____% 


 _____ years  _____% 


 _____ years  _____% 


 _____ years  _____% 


 _____ years  _____% 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 4 


6. Section 7.01, Offering of Disability Pension, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following language: 


 7.01 


[X] 


OFFERING OF DISABILITY PENSION. 


The Plan does not offer a Disability Pension 
[--] The Plan offers a Disability Pension 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 1, Class 2, and Class 4 







Fayette County Page 4 of 6 April 25, 2013  


7. Section 7.02, Eligibility for Disability Pension, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following language: 


 
 7.02 
 


ELIGIBILITY FOR DISABILITY PENSION. 


The later of the date: 


[--] The Participant attains __________ (____) years of age 


[--] The Participant completes __________ (____) years of Vesting Service  


 Eligibility shall be determined as of the date the Participant becomes Disabled as specified in 
Section 1.16 of this Adoption Agreement.   


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 1, Class 2, and Class 4 


8. Section 7.03, Amount of Disability Pension, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following language: 


 
 7.03 


[--] 


AMOUNT OF DISABILITY PENSION.   


__________ percent (____%)  of his Normal Retirement Pension adjusted to reflect 
the Participant’s annualized Average Monthly Compensation and Credited Service as 
of the date of Disability.   


[--] __________ percent (____%) of his annualized Average Monthly Compensation at 
the time of Disability. 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 1, Class 2, and Class 4 


9. Section 7.04, Computation and Payment of Disability Pension, is deleted in its entirety and 
replaced with the following language: 


 7.04 
 


COMPUTATION AND PAYMENT OF DISABILITY PENSION.   


Benefit Commencement Date shall be the later of: 


[--] The first day of the month coinciding with or next following the later of: (1) the date of 
the first payment associated with the program, plan, or policy elected by the Employer 
in Section 1.16 of this Adoption Agreement, or (2) the Participant’s Termination of 
Employment Date on or after his Disability Date. 


[--] The date the Participant attains _________ (___) years of age on or after his Disability 
Date. 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 1, Class 2, and Class 4 







Fayette County Page 5 of 6 April 25, 2013  


10. Section 9.01, Pre-Retirement Death Benefit, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following language: 


 9.01 
 


PRE-RETIREMENT DEATH BENEFIT.   


[X] 


Offering of Pre-Retirement Death Benefit 


Not Offered 
[--] Offered 
 


[--] 


Benefit Type and Amount 


[--] 


Lump Sum Benefit 


The amount of the death benefit shall be equal to __________ percent (____%) of the 
Participant’s annualized Average Monthly Compensation as of the end of the Plan Year 
immediately preceding the date of the Participant’s death.   


[--] The amount of the death benefit shall be equal to a multiple of ____ (____) of the 
estimated monthly amount of the Participant’s Normal Retirement Pension.   


 Maximum Lump Sum Benefit 
[--] Subject to a maximum amount of __________ dollars ($____) 
[--] Not subject to any maximum dollar amount 
[--] 


 


Annuity Benefit 


The amount of the death benefit, payable monthly to the beneficiary or beneficiaries, shall 
be equal to __________ percent (____%) of the Participant’s Nonforfeitable Accrued 
Benefit as of the date of the Participant’s death.   


 


[--] 


Permitted Beneficiaries for Annuity Benefit 


Spouse Only 
[--] Spouse and Minor Children Only 
[--] No Limitation 


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 1, Class 2, and Class 4 







Fayette County Page 6 of 6 April 25, 2013  


11. Section 9.05, Disability Death Benefit, is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following 
language: 


 9.05 
 


DISABILITY DEATH BENEFIT.   


[X] 


Offering of Disability Death Benefit 


Not Offered 
[--] Offered 
 


[--] 


Benefit Type and Amount 


 


Lump Sum Benefit 


The amount of the death benefit shall be equal to a multiple of ________ (___) of the 
Participant’s monthly Pension benefit as of the Participant’s Benefit Commencement Date 
subject to the maximum amount specified in Section 9.03 of the Plan.   


Amendment Effective Date: April 25, 2013 
Applicable Employees as defined 


 in the Adoption Agreement Addendum: Class 1, Class 2, and Class 4 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Employer has caused its duly authorized officer to execute this 
Amendment on the date noted below. 


FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


By:  ____________________________________________  


Title:  ___________________________________________  


Date:  ___________________________________________  


Accepted By:  ____________________________________________  
ACCG Defined Benefit Plan Board of Trustees 


Date:  _____________________________________________  
 







FAYETTE COUNTY, GA. 
Defined Benefit Plan 


 


Board of Commissioners  


May 9, 2013 


- 1 - 







Amendment of Existing Defined Benefit Plan:  


 


1. Death Benefits - Eliminate Pre-Retirement Death Benefits - $102,279 


2. Disability Benefits - Eliminate Disability Benefit - $91,823 


3. Retirement Benefit Formula – Reducing Benefit Multiplier 1.50% to 1.25%     
year/service - $22,217 


4. Retirement Benefit Formula - Normal Retirement Age – 65 years to 67 
years $18,512 


5. Retirement Benefit Formula Average Annual Compensation – 7-year to 10-
year average - $11,553 


6. Retirement Benefit Formula Increase Vesting Period - 5 years to 10 years - 
$4,268 


- 2 - 


Defined Benefit Plan 
Step #1 DB Plan Proposal 







- 3 - 


Defined Benefit Plan 
Amendments Actuarial Impact 


Plan Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023


Benefit Multiplier: 1.50% to 1.25% 22,217      43,331      64,114      83,643      103,971    125,443    148,403    170,453    194,586    219,565      


Retirement Age: 65 to 67 18,512      36,105      53,423      69,696      86,634      104,525    123,657    142,030    162,138    182,952      


Avg Comp - High 7 Yr - 10 Yr. 11,553      22,532      33,339      43,494      54,065      65,230      77,169      88,635      101,184    114,174      


Vesting - 5 Yrs to 10 Yrs 4,268         8,325         12,318      16,070      19,976      24,101      28,512      32,748      37,385      42,184         


Subtotal $56,550 $110,293 $163,194 $212,903 $264,646 $319,300 $377,740 $433,866 $495,293 $558,875


Disability Benefit $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823 $91,823


Pre-Retirement Death Benefit $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279 $102,279


Subtotal $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102 $194,102


Grand Total $250,652 $304,395 $357,296 $407,005 $458,748 $513,402 $571,842 $627,968 $689,395 $752,977


Cumlative Impact $4,933,680


Fayette County Defined Benefit Plan







- 4 - 


Defined Benefit Plan 
Actuarial Growth Projection 







- 5 - 


Defined Benefit Plan 
DB Plan Step #1 Impact 







Retirement Plan Approach:  


 


1. Employee – makes a one-time irrevocable election into their retirement 
plan of choice – DB Plan or DC Plan 


2. DB Plan: 


1. Mandatory 2.5% employee contribution 


2. Eligibility based upon Step #1 - DB Plan Amendments 


3. Employee’s mandatory 2.5% contribution would be increased to absorb 
increases required above the County 3.8% fixed contribution over time 


3. DC Plan: 


1. County contributes 3.8% into DC Plan 


2. County contribution vests to employee over a two-year period 
- 6 - 


Defined Benefit Plan 
Step #2 DB Plan Proposal 







- 7 - 


DB Plan Step #2 
Employee Selects Type Plan 


New Hire 


DB 
Plan 


DC 
Plan 







- 8 - 


DB Plan Step #2 
Retirement Plan Contributions 


Today’s Contribution (6.3%) 
DB Plan – County contribution is 3.8% 
DB Plan – Employee contribution is 2.5% 
 


Proposed Contribution (6.3%) 
DB Plan – County contribution is 3.8% 
DB Plan – Employee contribution is 2.5% 
 
DC Plan - County contribution is 3.8% 


 







- 9 - 


Defined Benefit Plan 
DB Plan Existing & Amended 







- 10 - 


Defined Benefit Plan 
Limit DB County Contribution 


 







Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Questions & Answers 


 


- 11 - 





		Commissioners- Defined Benefits Plan File with Backup 1

		Commissioners- Defined Benefits Plan Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Defined Benefits Plan Backup

		HR 424.04

		DB Plan - Attachment 1

		DB Plan 2 Step - Attachment 2

		3- DB Plan Resolution

		4- DB Plan Amendment

		1.08 AVERAGE MONTHLY COMPENSATION.  

		5.02 ELIGIBILITY FOR NORMAL OR LATE RETIREMENT PENSION.

		5.03 AMOUNT OF NORMAL OR LATE RETIREMENT PENSION.

		One and one-quarter percent (1.25%) of a Participant's annualized Average Monthly Compensation multiplied by years of Credited Service

		__________ percent (______%) of a Participant's annualized Average Monthly Compensation up to and including __________ multiplied by years of Credited Service, plus

		__________ percent (______%) of a Participant's annualized Average Monthly Compensation above __________ multiplied by years of Credited Service



		A fixed dollar amount of $_______ multiplied by years of Credited Service.

		__________ percent (____%) of annualized Average Monthly Compensation multiplied by the ratio of years of Credited Service to the total of: (1) the years of Credited Service plus (2) the years remaining until the Participant’s Normal Retirement Date.  The multiplier shall not be less than zero (0) nor greater than one (1).



		8.05 VESTING SCHEDULE.  

		Immediately upon Plan Entry Date

		Full Years of Vesting Service With the Employer

		Full Years of Vesting Service With the Employer



		7.01 OFFERING OF DISABILITY PENSION.

		The Plan does not offer a Disability Pension

		The Plan offers a Disability Pension



		7.02 ELIGIBILITY FOR DISABILITY PENSION.

		The later of the date:



		7.03 AMOUNT OF DISABILITY PENSION.  

		7.04 COMPUTATION AND PAYMENT OF DISABILITY PENSION.  

		9.01 PRE-RETIREMENT DEATH BENEFIT.  

		Not Offered

		Offered

		Maximum Lump Sum Benefit

		Subject to a maximum amount of __________ dollars ($____)

		Not subject to any maximum dollar amount

		Spouse Only

		Spouse and Minor Children Only

		No Limitation





		9.05 DISABILITY DEATH BENEFIT.  

		Not Offered

		Offered









		DB Plan 2 Step Overview






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Steve Brown


Proclamation to be presented to the Fayette County Farm Bureau recognizing May 14, 2013 as Farmer Appreciation Day.


Minter's Farm in the south Fayette community of Inman, will host the 6th Annual Farmer Appreciation Day for the Fayette County Farm 


Bureau.   


 


The Farm Bureau strives to be the voice of the agricultural community and works on the local, state and national level to enhance and 


strengthen the lives of those who work in the agricultural industry.   


 


The bureau started in Fayette County in 1941 and uses this appreciation day as an opportunity to recognize individuals in this profession 


who work hard to make their community a better place for all.  


To present this proclamation to a representative from Fayette County Farm Bureau.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes


Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, May 9, 2013







 
FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


 
               


Farmer Appreciation Day 
               


 


A PROCLAMATION 
 


WHEREAS,  American farmers are the unsung heroes of communities by offering healthy 


products including everything from avocados to zucchini across the nation; and  


WHEREAS, Farmers help to promote healthy families and combat childhood obesity by 


providing wholesome, nourishing products; and  


WHEREAS, Today’s average farmer produces nearly 600 percent more goods than their 


parents while using less land, energy, and emissions; and 


WHEREAS, The American agricultural industry creates 23 million jobs from America’s soil; 


and 


WHEREAS, The Fayette County Farm Bureau has enabled Georgia to be agriculturally 


successful, progressive and prosperous since 1941;  


NOW, THEREFORE, WE, THE FAYETTE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS PROCLAIM 
May 14, 2013 as Farmer Appreciation Day and we extend our gratitude to America’s farmers and to 
the Fayette County Farm Bureau for creating this day of awareness and for being the voice of Fayette 
farmers.  We urge and invite all Fayette County citizens to show your appreciation and support of 
farm families that grow not only our food, but also our economy and our quality of life.  God bless 
Fayette County and God bless our Fayette farmers!  
 


So Proclaimed this 9th day of May 2013 


 


        BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


         FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


        


              


        STEVE BROWN, Chairman 


         





		Commissioners- Fayette County...oclamation Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Fayette County Farm Bureau Proclamation Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Finance Mary S. Holland


Approval of staff's recommendation to reduce the county's participation in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, 
including the outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement by the amount of the 
account balance determined to be "excess funds."


In 1998, the County took a $5,000,000 participation stake in the Georgia Local Government Series 1998A certificates of participation.  
Proceeds were used to finance the County's share of the Georgia Municipal Association lease pool agreement.  An interest rate swap 
was simultaneously entered into with J.P. Morgan, with a $5,000,000 basis for swap calculations. 
 
The lease pool agreement stipulates that all funds - principal and interest - must be used every five years.  Any balance remaining in the 
lease pool's Equipment Fund longer than that is declared "excess funds." The County has reduced its participation three times previously, 
for a total reduction of $3,669,000.  
 
The County has been notified that Bank of New York estimates an additional $459,000 will become excess on June 1, 2013.  This 
reduction will decrease our liability to $872,000.


Approval of staff's recommendation to reduce the County's participation in the Georgia Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, 
including the outstanding amount of Certificates of Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement by the estimated 
amount of $459,000 which has been determined to be "excess funds".


No funding required.


Yes Thursday, October 13, 2011


No No


Yes


Yes


This action lowers Fayette County's existing debt from $1,331,000 to $872,000 using residual (excess) funding.


ConsentThursday, May 09, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville, allowing for the County to resurface 


Beauregard Blvd, Bradford Square, Creekside Trail, Hillsdale Drive, North Park Drive within the City of Fayetteville, providing staff and 


equipment at no cost to the city of Fayetteville, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement.


The County routinely enters into intergovernmental agreements with its municipalities to perform work that is better handled by the 


County. 


 


The specific Intergovernmental Agreement under consideration would authorize County staff, equipment and materials to be used within 


the City of Fayetteville to resurface 5 city streets.  These streets are listed in the Special Stipulations Attachment to the agreement.  The 


aggregate length of this resurfacing work is approximately 1.58 miles. 


 


The agreement includes the provision that the City of Fayetteville will reimburse the County the cost of materials used in the performance 


of this work.  Fayette County will provide the staff and the equipment at no cost to the city for those services.  The work is to be 


performed during the calendar year 2013 paving season.


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville, allowing for the County to resurface 


Beauregard Blvd, Bradford Square, Creekside Trail, Hillsdale Drive, North Park Drive within the City of Fayetteville, providing staff and 


equipment at no cost to the city of Fayetteville, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement.


The cost for the County is for providing labor and equipment. These costs will be paid out of the Road Department's existing budget.  The 


City of Fayetteville will reimburse the County the cost of all materials used in performing the work.


Yes Thursday, November 10, 2011


No Yes


Yes


This is an example of intergovernmental cooperation between Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville for the betterment of the 


citizens by providing safe and adequate streets. 


ConsentThursday, May 9, 2013

























		Road- Street Resurfacing Agreement - Agenda Request File

		Road- Street Resurfacing Agreement - Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Solid Waste and Recycling Vanessa Birrell


Approval of staff's request to make application to the Hazardous Waste Trust Fund (HWTF) for reimbursement of groundwater monitoring 


expenses associated with Monitored Natural Attenuation(MNA) at the Southside Landfill, and approval for the Chairman to sign 


Resolution 2013-12 granting staff authorization to make application for reimbursement.


The Hazardous Site Response Act was enacted in 1992, authorizing the Environmental Protection Division (EPD) to clean up hazardous 


sites that threaten human health or the environment. The EPD uses  the Hazardous Waste Trust Fund (HWTF) to reimburse local 


governments working to investigate and clean up their sites.  Local governments may receive up to $2,000,000 for clean up of their 


landfill if it is listed on the Hazardous Site Inventory.  The first $500,000 of eligible expenses are reimbursed at 100%.  Expenses beyond 


$500,000 are reimbursed at a 50% rate up to a cap of $2,000,000.  On March 27, 1997, the Southside Landfill was listed on Georgia 


Environmental Protection Division's Hazardous Site Inventory for known release of Vinyl Chloride in groundwater at levels exceeding the 


reportable quantity.  


 


Fayette County conducted an Assessment of Corrective Measures (ACM) study  to identify, screen, and select appropriate corrective 


measures to mitigate groundwater impacts identified at the Site.  This study recommended natural processes to reduce concentrations of 


undesirable constituents in groundwater.  Groundwater samples are collected semi-annually to assess this process. 


 


The Georgia Environmental Protection Division requires the state or local government to adopt an authorizing resolution as part of the 


criteria that must be met in order for the costs (or portion thereof) to be eligible for reimbursement.


Approval of staff's request to make application to the Hazardous Waste Trust Fund (HWTF) for reimbursement of groundwater monitoring 


expenses associated with Monitored Natural Attenuation(MNA) at the Southside Landfill, and approval for the Chairman to sign 


Resolution 2013-12 granting staff authorization to make application for reimbursement.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


This request allows for eligible expenses that will be reimbursed, if awarded, to $14,503.00 per year.


ConsentThursday, May 9, 2013







HSI No. Permit No. Landfill Name Page 1 of 1


10451 056-006D(SL); 056-014D(SL); 056-014D(L)1st Manassas Mile Rd MSWLF


Invoice 


No.


Invoice 


Date Payee


Invoice 


Amount


Check 


No.


Check 


Date


Check 


Amount Eligible Costs


Ineligible 


Costs Item Description Code
81524 28-Nov-08 AEM $5,274.09 905957 07-Apr-09 $5,274.09 $1,375.00 $3,899.09 7 ( c)


91335 19-Aug-09 AEM $317.25 101231 08-Sep-09 $9,508.75 $0.00 $317.25


91347 26-Aug-09 AEM $9,191.50 101231 08-Sep-09 $1,350.00 $7,841.50 7 ( c)


101025 31-Jan-10 AEM $317.25 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $0.00 $317.25


101026 31-Jan-10 AEM $346.50 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $0.00 $346.50


101033 31-Jan-10 AEM $346.50 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $0.00 $346.50


101034 31-Jan-10 AEM $317.25 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $0.00 $317.25


101081 24-Feb-10 AEM $346.50 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $0.00 $346.50


101082 25-Feb-10 AEM $317.25 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $0.00 $317.25


101083 22-Feb-10 AEM $2,228.00 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $0.00 $2,228.00


101131 26-Feb-10 AEM $7,234.25 105745 25-Mar-10 $11,453.50 $1,250.00 $5,984.25 7 ( c)


101373 12-Jul-10 AEM $9,725.25 108257 22-Jul-10 $12,221.25 $1,750.00 $7,975.25 7 ( c)


101374 12-Jul-10 AEM $2,496.00 108257 22-Jul-10 $12,221.25 $0.00 $2,496.00


101691 31-Dec-10 AEM $6,946.25 $750.00 $6,196.25 7 ( c)


071511-01B 15-Jul-11 Jacobs $1,000.00 $310.00 $690.00 7 ( c)


081511-01B 15-Aug-11 Jacobs $2,000.00 120759 18-Sep-11 $8,700.00 $620.00 $1,380.00 7 ( c)


090611-01B 06-Sep-11 Jacobs $6,000.00 121489 20-Sep-11 $12,087.36 $1,860.00 $4,140.00 7 ( c)


101411-01B 14-Oct-11 Jacobs $1,500.00 $465.00 $1,035.00 7 ( c)


110911-01B 09-Nov-11 Jacobs $1,100.00 $345.00 $755.00 7 ( c)


110911-06 09-Nov-11 Jacobs $12,681.36 $828.00 $11,853.36


080912-01B 09-Aug-12 Jacobs $4,000.00 $1,240.00 $2,760.00 7 ( c)


091212-01B 12-Sep-12 Jacobs $4,000.00 131546 20-Sep-12 $11,929.07 $1,240.00 $2,760.00 7 ( c)


101112-01B 11-Oct-12 Jacobs $2,500.00 $775.00 $1,725.00 7 ( c)


110812-01B 08-Nov-12 Jacobs $1,100.00 $345.00 $755.00 7 ( c)


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$0.00


$14,503.00


Please see the list of Item Description Codes on the following sheet.  For each invoice, please indicate the corresponding Item Description Code in the box 


provided.


Total Amount Eligible for Reimbursement:  


County


Fayette


Hazardous Waste Trust Fund Application for Reimbursement


Invoice Payment Table


Instructions:  For each invoice for which reimbursement is requested, please provide all of the information requested below.  As part of the application , you are 


required to submit a copy of each invoice and a copy of the canceled check (front and back) showing payment of each invoice.


When submitting your application, you MUST attach the invoice to the copy of the canceled check (front and back), and present the invoices in the order in 


which you list them below.  Failure to follow these instructions will delay the processing of your application for reimbursement.







STATE OF GEORGIA;  


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


RESOLUTION NUMBER 2013-12 


 


A RESOLUTION GRANTING AUTHORIZATION TO MAKE APPLICATION FOR 


FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County is a local government as defined in the Rules of the Georgia 


Department of Natural Resources, Environmental Protection Division (hereinafter, “EPD 


Rules”), Rule number 391-3-19-.09; and 


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County is a county within the meaning of O.C.G.A. Section 12-8-


95(b)(4) and EPD Rule 391-3-19-.09; and  


 


WHEREAS, the First Manassas Mile Municipal Solid Waste Landfill in Fayette County, 


Georgia is a solid waste handling facility as defined by EPD Rule 391-3-4-


.10(67)(hereinafter, “the Site”), and has been placed on the Hazardous Site Inventory pursuant 


to the Hazardous Site Response Act (O.C.G.A., Section 12-8-90 et seq.); and 


 


WHEREAS, the Director of the Georgia Department of Natural Resources, Environmental 


Protection Division (“EPD”) has notified Fayette County in writing that it is a “responsible 


party” (as defined in EPD Rule 391-3-19-.02(2)(s) for the Site; and  


 


WHEREAS, Fayette County has expended certain costs associated with the investigation, 


remediation, post-closure care and maintenance of the Site (hereinafter, “the Costs”); and 


 


WHEREAS, the said “Eligibility Requirements” set forth in EPD Rule 3914-3-19-.09(2) 


require, among other things, that the following criteria be met in order for the Costs (or 


portion thereof) to be eligible for reimbursement: 


 


 “…(e)  the state or local government has adopted an authorizing resolution; and 


 (f) the state or local government has submitted to the Directed[of EPD] a 


completed application for financial assistance on forms as provided by the 


Director…”; and 


  


WHEREAS, Fayette County desires to make application to EPD for reimbursement of the 


Costs (or portion thereof) on the form(s) provided by the Director of EPD, and to take any 


other action which may be necessary or appropriate to have the Costs (or portion thereof) 


fully considered for such purposed; and  


 


 WHEREAS,  in the event the attached applications are approved by the EPD, Fayette 


County desires to receive sums approved by EPD as reimbursement of the Costs (or portion 


therof), and to process, administratively handle and utilize said sums for such approved 


purposes; and 


 







WHEREAS, Fayette County is confident that it can otherwise satisfy the “Eligibility 


Requirements” set forth in EPD Rule 391-3-19-.09(2); 


 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Chairman of the Board of 


Commissioners, on behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, is hereby fully 


authorized to complete and execute an application on behalf of Fayette County, for 


reimbursement to Fayette County by the Director of EPD from the Hazardous Waste Trust 


Fund (pursuant to O.C.G.A. Section 12-8-90 et seq., EPD Rule 391-3-19-.09 and other 


pertinent law), and to submit same to EPD for its consideration.  


 


 


BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Chairman is hereby authorized to take any and all 


other action, without further approval or action of the Fayette County Board of 


Commissioners (including, but not limited to, executing supplemental forms, application 


amendments, additional applications, and the like, and providing additional information or 


documentation), which may be necessary or appropriate in order for the Costs (or portion 


thereof) to be fully considered by EPD for reimbursement from the Hazardous Waste Trust 


Fund in accordance with the provisions of O.C.G.A. Section 12-8-90 et seq., EPD Rule 391-


3-19-.09, and other pertinent law. 


 


  So resolved this 9
th


 day of May, 2013 by the  


 


      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


      FAYETTE COUNTY,  GEORGIA 


 


 


            


      Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


 


ATTEST: 


 


 


 


     


Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk 





		Solid Waste- Hazardous Waste Agenda Request File

		Solid Waste- Hazardous Waste Backup

		Backup-1

		Backup 2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow the City of Fayetteville to use a waterline easement on Highway 85 to 


service 1391 Highway 85 with sewer, with the stipulation that the Water System will review the plans, will conduct an on-site inspection, 


and will be given as-built drawings.


The veterinarian clinic at 1391 Highway 85 needs sewer service from the City of Fayetteville.  To install the sewer line, the City needs to 


use the waterline easement owned by the Board of Commissioners to install the sewer line.  


 


There are no issues related to the sewer line being placed in the easement with the waterline.  There is enough room for both services 


lines.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to allow the City of Fayetteville to use a waterline easement on Highway 85 to 


service 1391 Highway 85 with sewer, with the stipulation that the Water System will review the plans, will conduct an on-site inspection, 


and will be given as-built drawings.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


This is an example of intergovernmental cooperation between Fayette County and the City of Fayetteville in an effort to provide needed 


services.


ConsentThursday, May 9, 2013









		Water System-  Highway 85 Eas...nda Request File

		Water System- Highway 85 Easement Backup



